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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements - Chairman’s Overview
For the year ended 31 March 2020

| am pleased to report that the Group has continued to achieve its primary objectives whitst also rising te the chalienges
faced by the recent Covid epidemic,

DOHL is a wholly owned subsidiary company of the Department for Transport {DfT). The company performs the role of an
Operator of Last Resort Holding Company an behalf of DT for Railway Cperations that are moved into government
ownership,

The primary objectives of DOHL are to facilitate the transfer of ownership and then to provide good governance, suppont
and direction to the companies under its control whilst in the DT ownership. DOHL has a pool of talents and skilis from
highly experienced railway managers to financial and business experts. In early 2020 DOHL Board also welcomed an
additional Non-Executive director, Chris Gibb, He brings a wealth of experience and expertise in railway operations as well
as in corporate govermance of Safety and Operaticnai issues.

The statements cover 2018-2020, the secand year of pperation of the Compaty. The year has seen London Narth Eastemn
Railway Limited company (LMER) first full year of trading after transferring from Virgin Trains East Coast (VTEC) on 24
June 2018, the transfer of ownership to DOHL of Northern Trains Limited from the former Arriva Rail North (ARN) Franchise
under the cwnership of Arriva UK Trains Limited and the establishment of Train Fleet (2019) Limited (TF19) for the
acquisition of a small fleet of Ciass 365 unils.

{ am defighted with LNER’s achievement in introduging the Azuma trains to all their rautes, significantly improving the
cusfomer experience and reducing emissions. | have seen the leadership across the business and the relationships with
their stakeholders positively strengthen, On 26 June 2020 DfT announced that has made a Direct Award to LNER to
continue operating intercity rail services on the East Coast for another three years with the aption to extend for a further
twao. This will allow us to continue deiivering planred improvements for customers, including completing the introduction of
Azuma trains and associated inctease in services, destinations and journey times as wefl as our enhanced customer
experience,

The transfer of NTL's ownership to DOHL accurred on 1 March 2020 following the Secretary of Stale’s annourcement on
28 January 2020. The transfer and mobilisation of the new arrangements were undertaken successhully and in a way that
caused as little disruption to the travelling public, the staf?, safaty and the commercial impetus of the business as could be

managed.

The Class 365 fleet was brought into TF19 ownership within DOHL from 13 August 2019, having been acquired from
Evershalt Rait Group. Cantinuity of leasing arrangements to Govia Thamaslink Railway was maintained for the twenty one
units in their passenger rail service.

Since the start of the Covid epidemic, the Group and our subsidiaries have put the health and safety or our customers and
staff to the forefront of our decision making. Adhering to Government guidelines, our passenger services will continue and
are central ta the economic recovery of the country.

The Holding Company operation in financial terms is a small one. The finances are driven by the scale of operation of the
operating companies under the Holding Company control. A review of the operations in the year is presented in the CEQ's
overview. The CEQ of DOHL as part of his duties acts as Chairman of the LNER and the NTL Board. My duties as Chairman
of DOHL also extend to being Chairman of TF19.

Registered Office: Albany House Bth Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H SAE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financia! Statements — Chairman’s Overview
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Work is ongoing to ensure that DOHL is equipped and ready, if necessary, to manage any further Rail Operations should
this be required. The current econamic climate in the rail industry is one of great uncerainty caused by the pandemic.
There is uncerainty as to how long LNER, NTL and any other train company might remain in the control of DOHL, or in
the future contractual arrangements within the industry. Meanwhile the objective of DOHL is to ensure that any company
hetd within its contro! remains in good heaith, operates efficienfly and is fit for purpose in any future circumstances.

Richard George
Chairman
30 July 2020

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, §4-98 Petty France, London, SW1iH SAE
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DFT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements — CEQ’s Overview
For the year ended 31 March 2020 ‘

In its second year of operation, DOHL successfully carried cul the mobilisation and transfer of Northern Trains Limited,
another franchised Train Operating Company into public ownership for a period stated its Service agreement. 1t also
supported the further development of LNER as it re-established itself as the premier long distance operator.

Northern

NTL is the largest regional operatcr in the UK running 412 trains calling at 535 stations of which it directly manages 478
Its transfer was therefore a complex activity but was achieved seamiessly in just four weeks without disruption to services
or passengers and within budget. As it was afler a very uncertain periad for the management and staff. 1 am extrernely
grateful for their help and support in delivering the transfer. We were also very indebted again for the detailed work of the
Department for Transport's Franchise Resilience and Mobilisation team without which we would not have achieved such

a srmooth transition.

From that position we were able to embark on the review ardered by the Secretary of State, the "100 Day Plan” which was
delivered by NTL on time (within a 100 days from the start of the franchise) despite the impact of Covid. That plan sets out
short term initiatives for restoring the basics of NTL's operaticns to improve customer service. It also links to the
developments planned by the North West Recovery Task Force, led by Network Rail and werking with local stakehelders,
to make a significant increase in Northern's capacity and reliability ameongst other benefits once Covid is behind us.

London North Eastern Railway

During the year LNER has overcome a range of inherited challenges in its first full year of operation to successfully deliver
the first stage in a mulli-year transformation of intercity high-speed services an its route. LNER's new Azuma fleet, which
was infroduced into customer service in May 2019, has aliowed us to start running the railway of the future, serving new
destinations while reducing emissions per passenger and significantly improving the customer experience with more
spacious, quieter, more frequent and more reliable journeys. During the year LNER faunched new regular, direct services
te Lincoln and Harrogate, The technelogical advances of Azuma compared te our legacy fleet have already paid dividends,
including during the disruptive weather at the start of 2020.

The drive to achieve modal shift continued to reap results with share versus airlines on our London-Edinburgh route
growing to 36.9 per cent up over three per cent on target. We have also continued ta put the customer firsi with our Single
Leg Pricing trial rofled out on three of our key routes, and over 25,000 families many of whom are new to rail benafiting
from LNER's Family Ticket.

Train Fleet (2019)
Since the start of trading, the majority of Train Fleet (2019) Limited's fleet of Class 365 has continued to operate in
passenger traffic, earning rental income for the company. The rental income is expected to continue to aliow it to generate
positive cash flow for the foreseeable future. The remainder is in store and available for rent. There is an ongaing stream
of potential rental cpportunities for the remainder of the fieet, and these are being continuously explored, but the nature of
the UK rolling stock market is that these take many months or years to mature. Given these factors the Campany has
recagnised a reduction of the fleet's value to the board's estimation of the present value of its future rental income, The
board continuously explores ways to maximise the value and utility of the company's train fleat for its stakehcolders.

Covid

The pandemic began to have a material effect on DOHL's activities right at the end of the year with the country entering
lockdown on Monday 23 March 2020, From that time both operating businesses have put the welfare of staff and
passengers at the forefrant of their planning and delivery. Service levels were cut back to reflect the initial fail in demand
of up to 95%. Minimum staffing levels were introduced with the appropriate safeguards. Non-essential costs were
gliminated. Since then service levels have been gradually increased, in line with government guidelines and available
resources, to offer as much capacity as possible, whilst continuing to fatow government guidelines, Both operating

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 84-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdirigs Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements — CEO’s Overview
For the year enged 31 March 2020 7 7 '

businesses have continued ta work in partnership with industry stakehalders to share best practice and ensure a consistent
approach to customer information.

Next Steps
As we recover fram Covid and NTL embarks on achieving their objective and initiatives set out in its 100 Day Plan, DOHL

is now getting ready to take on further activities should that be reguired.

Robin Gisby
CEQ angd Accounting Cfficer
30 July 2020
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DT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Strategic Report
For the year ended 31 March 2020

The Directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2020.
CPERATIONAL REVIEW

Fleet

During the year London North Eastern Railway Limited (LNER) successfuliy managed the intreduction of the new "Azyma’
trains, bringing a step change in reliability, compared to the 40-year-old legacy trains they replaced. This wili bring further
improvements to fleet performance as weit as working closely with the train provider, Hitachi to ensure the remaining
Azuma trains are smoothly introduced throughout 2020.

Under the Services Agreement Northern Trains Limited {NTL) are committed to centinue rolfing out the new state-of-the-
art trains with top speeds of 400mph allowing for extra capaciiy. New technolagy is being irialled to identify passanger
demand and vvercrowding ginch points. An ovethaul of on-board cleanliness, including a major deep cleaning program of
all trains has commenced, This is to ensure that for every journey a passenger makes with NTL will be on trains that are
upheld to an enhanced standard of cleanliness. A recruitment drive {0 Increase on-board train presentation staff by 66 new
posts is underway,

There is an angoing stream of potential rental opportunities for Train Fieet {2019) Limited’s (TF19) Class 365 fleet, and
these are being continuously explored. The nature of the UK rolling stock market is that these take many months or years
o mature. Given these factors the Group has recognised a reduction of the fleet's value to the board's estimation on the
present value of its future rental income.

Customers and Communities

The Group stays aligned with custormer expectations and interest through several means, regularly capturing customers
and stakeholder insight, In addition, the sentiment of customer engagement on our social media channels and enquiries
into our customer contact team are monitored.

During the year LNER has developed digital products tc improve the custemer's journey such as the responsivensss to
inform customers of future train alteraticns and accessibility to procure tickets. Being part of the communities is much more
than just the cannectivity aur services pravide, it's how we support employmeitt, education, culture and the enviranment.
To do this, LNER is pilcting bold new initiatives from local partnerships to delivering impact through their Customer and
Communrity Investment Fund. Ta lift and supgon communities so they can be their best.

The move to public ownership and launch of NTL has seen a renewed focus on customer experience right across the
business. A refreshed service quality regime praducing actionabie data has started to deliver results and ensure activity is
targeted where customers stand to benefit most, Quarterly Voice of the customer workshops across the busines, support
custamer action plans to drive positive change. The Northern Accessibility User Group allows us to wark closely with our
less mobile customers on the issues they care about most. Moving forward, NTL is moving to a mone customer-centric
position, with new tools and methodologies to drive ‘customer first’ thinking and updated training for customer-facing
colleagues.

Our Suppliers

The Group adhere to a Code of Conduct consistent with the Government Code of Good Practice for Corporate Governance,
further details can be found in the 'Director Report’ on page 15. As a way forward the Group is taking measures to ensure
alt key suppliers are aligned to us, for example, LNER issue a Supplier Code of Conduct to itg key suppliers outlining how
it aspires to manage its fong-term supplier relationship, all suppliers must sign up to this before contracting with LNER.
Depending on contract vafue, complexity and risk, contracts are regularly reviewed for performance and have both a
Contract manager from the relevant gdirectorate, as weli as a procurement lead assigned to it. NTL are reviewing their

Registered Cftice: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H SAE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited ‘
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Strategic Report continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020 ' '

current gavernarce processes to ensure a consistent approach with LNER. With LNER trading its first fuli year undet public
ownership, they are able to share "best practices” across the Group.

In addition to the commercial aspects, LNER and NTL are also intreducing corporale social responsibility measures in
tender evaluations, as well ag auditing and monitoring suppliers from a 'Modern Slavery' perspective. As an organisation
that is subject to the Utilities Contract Reguiations {UCR), contracts over the relevant threshold are advertised in the Official
Journal of the EU {OJEU) or through an UCR compliant framework agreement such as the Grown Commercial services
frameworks, and outside of this they upheld the pringiples of proportianaiity, transparency and equal treatment to ensure
best value is achieved with the mast suitable suppliers for any project.

As a minimum level of assurance, we expect our suppliers to ensure they meet the provisions of the Ethical Trading
Initiative {ET1) Base Code or similar standards and that they are monitored by independent third parties, We adopt a riskc-
based approach with our supply base to ensure significant direct jabour contracts, such as our catering and cleaning
suppliers, pay at least the national (and London) living wage to their employees and supply chain This is specified in the
commercial confract and audited on a regutar basis.

Environment

Qur Environmental Sustainability Strategies are guided through application of our 1ISO 14001 and IS0 50001 certified
energy and environmental management system, and strengthened through our partnerships with Network Ral, industry
groups, station tenants. cleaners, and colleagues. This approach has driven us to increase our recycling segregation,
achieve zero waste to landfill for our managed waste and to reduce our passenger km carbon footprint.

Further information relating to the Group's carbon tCO2e can be found in the Sustainabilty repont, page 17

Technology inte UK Rail

The financial year saw the creation of a new Digital and [nnovation Directorate at LNER with the abjective of designing and
developing a transformative digital experience roadmap for customers and employees. This investment will ensure the
business is best placed to grow market share from akfline and road competition.

Over the year £6.9m of capital was invested on an exciting portfolio of prajects to ensure that LNER s digital offers will meet
customer and employee expectations both now and in the fulure, There were 21 projects were successfully delivered
across the year with a further 26 in flight going into the next financial year and another 14 in the pipeline. Notable projects
include development of a brand new app experience that will enable best in class retail, new real time customer information
systems through LNER assistant tachnoiogy, introduction of digital ticketing which has seen 70% adoption through anline
channels, machine learning and artificial intelligence (Al), easier Delay Repay, geolocation targeting, and wayfinding.

Techholegy underpins many of the ambitions in the NTL 100 day plan, including digitally transfarmed ways of working to
enable a smarter and moere agile response 10 customer and employee needs. A priofity (s to develop improved business
insight to promote a better undersianding of business operations, the market and overall performance, which wifl inform
the strategic decisions to continue to enhance the customer and colleague experience. The new year $€es an even more
ambitious roadmap unfolding with a focus on technclogy that will sclve the challenges presented by Covid.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

in addition 1o monitoring financial performance, the Group uses a range of performance indicators {KPls} for the companies
{o assess the effectiveness of performance in key adtivittes. It should be noted that DOHL only held NTL for one month in
the financial year and this was heavily impacted by Covid The most important of thase KFIs focus in the following key
areas

Registered Office: Atbany House 8th Floor, 84-98 Petty France, Londan, SW1H SAE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Strategic Report continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Safety
Safety is at the heart of our approach in running the railway. We are committed fo providing a safe working enviranment
for all our colleagues and a safe end-to-end journey fer all customers. Headline safety results include:

LNER LNER NTL

Avg. 2020 Avg. 2019 24 Avg. 2020

Full Yr Jun-31 Mar 1-31 Mar

Passenger major injuries per 1 million passenger journeys 0.44 0.23 .00
Workforee lost time accidents per 1,000 employees 1,12 0.23 0.31
Employee physical assautts psr 1,000 employees 2.07 1.15 a.7g

This year saw 2 RIDDOR recorded customer incidents (Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrénces
Regulations 2013}, (2019 1 incident}. For staff accidents there were 26 RIDDOR reportable employee accidents (2019. 7
incidents), the prior year incidents do not include NTL.

During the reporting year there have been 80 LNER and § NTL employees who were physically assautted. The
classification for this differs to those of the police. Any physical contact is recorded as a physical assault. The highest
individual causes were related to ticket enforcement and/or dealing with customers reported te be under the influence of
alcoho! or drugs {26% of all physical assavlls). A further 15% of the physica) assaults related to passengers presenting
themselves while the train is in service after being dispatched. Most of the reparted physical assaults were minor in nature,
but there were 5 that would be considered serious, resulting in the § employees taking time off sick. The Group's approach
to dealing with this risk is twofold, prevention and prosecution. Prevention through training of staff on conflict resolution, a
clear policy on not putting yourself at risk and implementing local initiatives that focus on areas where there is increased
tisk of conflict. CCTV at stations and on trains are accessible 1o the British Transport Police (BTP) for the pursuit of evidence
in such events. All physical assautts ars investigated internaily.

The Group centinue to have a strong refationship with the Office of Rail and Road (ORR) and the Safety Regulator of
Britain's Railways. LNER's 2019/20 Safety & Sustainabifity plan maintained and further improved the safety anc
environmental performance delivered in 2018/19, being awarded the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents
{RoSPA) 'Gold Award' for safety performance improvement,

Employee Engagement

Improving employee engagement has heen a sigrificant focus of activity throughout the year with clear action plans created
across teams within the business led by our engagement champions The LNER engagemen survey conducted in March
2020 showed overall engagement af 80%, a 43 increase on the 2019 score.

At the transfer of the NTL business, we compleied a successful TUPE process, with over 6,000 employees transferring.
Engaged employees are critical to our ambitious plans o improve the cusiomers' experience, and NTL's future plans
include the monitoring of employee's engagement to allow for targeted investment to deliver tangible improvements which
ensure staff have access to the right foals and training to perform their roles to the highest standards.

With actions concentrating on recognition and communications, we are pleased to report significant progress has been
seen in this area. Much more activity will be planned in the coming year to drive further improvements. Our plans include
targeled investment to achieve tangible improvements that will be key to our ambitious plans to improve customers'
experience,

Registered Office: Albany House Bth Floor, 34-98 Petty France, London, SW1H S9AE
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DFT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Strategic Report continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020 o '

Traln Performance

The Public Performance Measure (PPM)is a measure of the punctuality of passenger trains in Britain. it is the primary
measure of Operational Train Performance and is the percentage of scheduled trains which successfully run their entire
planned route, calling at all timetabled stations, and arrive at their terminating station 'on time’ {(within ten minutes fer long-
distance operators). Alang with other operators , from the start of Control Period & (CP6), the Group measyres 'Time-to-
3". Unlike PPM, which measures performance only at destination, this measure records punctuality at all station calls along

the route.

LNER LNER NTL

2020 2019 2020

FullYr  Full ¥r 1-31 Mar

PPM 78.2% T4.8% 85.1%
Time-to-3 €3.2% n/a 83.3%

LNER PPM increased by 3.4% over the year. Sadly, pubtic fatalities (deliberate suicidal acts) caused the largest impact on
our performance. LNER partner with the Carnpaign Against Living Miserably {CALM), which along with Netwark Rail's work
with The Sarmaritans, sims to reduce such events by tagkling them at root cause. Qur employees, including managers and
directors, have attended The Samaritans' ‘Managing Suicidal Contacts’ courses to raise awareness of vulnerable persons
and equip staff with the tools to make successful life-saving interventions.

Through the ‘East Coast Partnership’ between LNER and Network Rail, there is now an appointed single ‘Joint Head of
Performance’ spanning both organisations. During 2020, the performance teams will be combined into a single, unified
structure, whilst also refocusing their approach and governance to prioritise continuous performance improvement.

Customer Advocacy

The Naticnal Raif Passengar Survey (NRPS) is a netwark wide picture of passengers’ satisfaction with rail travel. The
survey is carried out twice a year from a representative sample of journeys. {n the Spring 2020 survey. overall satisfaction
with journey for LNER and NTL was 91% and 77% respectively. An improvement of 1% and 5% compared fo the Autumn
2019 survey (Autumn 2019 survey, NTL was under Arriva trains).

The NRPS results are an infuencing factor t¢ the cusiormer experience strategy. Guided by the results as well as
undertaking ad hoc research to understand where and how to improve the customer journeys and to create a culture of
transparent customer-focussed decision making across the businesses.

FINANCGIAL REVIEW

Cavid

The Covid crisis struck the rail industry during the last month of this financiat year and has had a hugely detrimental impact
on passenger volumes and revenues In that month, and subsequently. From a profitability and liquidity point of view
however the Group is largely unaffected due to the protections under the Service Agreements between both LNER and
NTL with DIT. Under these agreement DT is taking the revenue and cost risk resulting from Covid and 1s paid to the LNER
and NTL through the franchise subsidy/premium mechanism.

Cperating performance

Turnover for the financial year ending 31 March 2020 s £919.5m (2019: £680.8m, forty weeks) which in the main reflects
ticket reveniue earned from passenger sefvicas and associated income earned from catering, car parks, commission and
train rental revenue. In line with other Train Operating Companies, the franchise subsidy paid to NTL from DfT, £54.4m is

reported under revenue.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H QAE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Strategic Report continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020 -

The operating expenditure reported In the year was £918.1m (2019: £628 2m), comprising of, access charges payabie to
Network Rail for stations and depots, rolling stock lease costs, staff costs and eother operating costs. Franchise premiurm
payment of £94.1m was paid to the DfT by LNER (2019:£128.4m, forty weeks). During the year an impairment review was
carned out on TF19 assets, resulting in an impairment expenses on the Class 365 fleets of £11m reported in operating
costs.

The logs befare taxation for the year was £7.9m (2019: £53.5m profit}.

Statement of financial position
At 31 March 2020 the Group had net assets of £126m (2019: £67.9m).

Statement of cash flows
The Group has gefierated a net cash inflow of £155.3m (2019: £73.7m) in the year leaving a cash balance of £229.1m at
31 March 2020 (2019 £73.8m).

PRINCIPAL KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Campany maintains a register of strategic risks. The risks which have an impact ¢n the Company's goals and
objectives are overseen by the Executive Direclors, the Audit and Risk Committee, and the Board. This focus, underpinned
by close workings with the DfT and DCHL's other subsidiaries, has ensured that risks are being managead within the Board's
risk appetite.

The Key risks of the Company that were identified by the Board during the year were.
+  That the Company is rigt sufficiently well equipped to manage any further Franchise Operations should this be
required.
»  The impact of Covid on,
o reduced passenger demand for rail and gonstraints caused by social distancing,
o viability of the Groups supply chains is threatened,
o private sector TOCs and open access facing insolvency threats,
o industry steps to recaver out of Covid.
»  The threats posed to all grganisations through cyber criminality.
»  Detivery of timetable changes, due to lack of resource resilience having adverse impact on revenue, operational
efficiency and reputation.

The Group i exposed to extemal and internal risk factors. The business is depénderit on passenger numbers which are
impacled by Covid recovery but also other external risk factors such as Brexit, regulatory, economic, and competitor
activity. Under the terms of the Services Agreement, the Group falls under the regulation of the Department for Transport,
and the Office of Rail and Road. Laws and regulations are subject to alteration and amendment and the costs of compliance
with new legislation and regulations may have an adverse impact on the Group's financial performance. To mitigate the
risk from such changes the Group proactively engages with both Govermment and railway groups.

Internal risks include failure of internal contrals and industriat disputes. The Group operates established formal and robust
internal processes to ensure systems and controls are operating effectively, and that the quality and integrity of information
provided to it is reliable, enabling Diractors to monitor and challenge the performance of the company, and make informed
decisions. The Group also has an established Internal Audit programme which has been developed through a risk based
analysis of our opetations. Our Internal Audit teams aim to be at the forefront of strategic and technological developments
throughout the business and deal with emerging risks as they arise so that, as a business, we're able to respond 1o these
as effectively as possible.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Peity France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements - Strategic Report continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020 ’

The retention and recruitment of key personnel is essential to ensure the Group has the correct level of expertise and
industry knowledge. To mitigate this risk, the Group undertakes efficiency and effectivensss reviews to gptimise
organisational design and secure a sound base for development of future workforce capability.

By order of the Board

-

Y :
R(,'.{;()«, \.\l/,_a ( \

Rohin Gisby
CEQ and Accounting Officer
30 July 2020
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited ‘
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 March 2020

The Directors present their annual report, business review, the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020.

History and background

DOHL (‘the Company”) is a non-departmenta! governmant entity which was incorporated on 30" January 2010 by the
Secretary of State for Transporl. Its principal activity is the management and support of train companies and rolling stock
that are returned to temporary public ownership. At the beginning of 15 March 2020, DOHL had one wholly owned train
operating company, London North Eastern Railway Limited.

In August 2019, DFT OLR3 Limited, renamed to Train Fleet Limited 2019 (TF19) purchased a fieet of Class 365 acquired
from Eversholt Rail Groug. ©n 1 March 2020, following termination of the Ariva Rail North Limited {ARN) Franchise
Agreement, DOHL took aver the management and operation of the business, now Northerrs Trains Limited (NTL).

The Company is wholly cwhed by the Secretary of State for Transport. in additions to the two wholly owned train operating
subsidiaries and train rental company, the Company also owns a number of other companies although none had any
significant trading activity.

DOHL, London North Eastern Railway Limited, Northern Trains Limited and Train Fleet {2019) Limited comprise the Group
(the "Group”).

Principal activities
The principal activity of DOHL is as a Holding Company on behalf of DFT for Franchised Train Operations that are maoved
into government ownership in accordance with Section 30 of the Railways Act 1993, DOHL facilitates the ownership
transfer and then provides good governance, support and direction to the operating companies under its cantrol whilst in
the OfT ownership.

The principal activity of Londoh North Eastem Railway Limited and Northern Trains Limited is the provision of passenger
services. Train Fleet {2019) Limited principal activity is the rentat of trains, rolling stock.

Results and dividend
The Group's reported financgial performance for the year ended 31 March 2020 shows a loss after tax for the financial year
of £8m (2019: £41.2m profit).

The Directors do not propose a dividend for the year (2019; £ni)). The Company received dividend of £40m from LNER
during the year (2019: Enil).

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Directors’ Report continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Directors
The Directors of the Compariy who were in office during the year and up fo the date of signing the financial statements are
listed below:

Non-Executive Chairman Richard George

Chief Executive and Actounting Officer  Robin Gisby

Executive Finance Director Richard Harrison
Non-Executive Directors David Bennett
Tirm Buxion
Chris Gibb Appointed 24 March 2020

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements:

Richard Harrison

Directors' attendance at board meetings
The Directors’ attendance at Board meetings from 1 March 2019 to 31 March 2020 was as follows:

Attended Invited

Richard George 13 13
Rebin Gispby 13 13
Richard Harrison 13 13
Tim Buxton 13 13
Dave Bennett H 13
Chris Gibb 1 1

Code of Conduct

A DOHL Board Operating Framework is in place setting out the role and responsibilities of the Board consistent with the
Government Cods of Good Practice for Corporate Governance. There is a code of practice for all DORBL, Board members
in place, consistent with the Cabinet Office Code of Condust for Board Members of Public Bodies and with the rules refating
to the use of public funds and confficts of interest. A code of conduct for staff is In place based on the Cabinet Office’s
Model Code for Staff of Exegutive Non-departmental Public Bodies.

They ensure there is no misuse of information gained in the course of their public service for personal gain or for political
profit, nor seek to use the opportunity of public service to promote their private interests or those of connected persons or
organisations. Directors must comply with the Board's rules on acceptance of gifts and hospitality, and of business
appointments. To act in good faith and in the best interests of the Group.

Procedures are regularly reviewed to comply with any tegal, regulatory and best practice requirements. They apply and
obriefed 1o all employees and interim workers, regardiess of seniority or function to ensure an understanding of the
requirements placed upon individuals. Any departure from the applicable code ¢an result in further disciplinary actions.
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Conflict of interest

Procadures are in place to ensure Directors compty with their duties in relation to conflicts of interest. Board Directors are
abtliged to provide details of any direci or indirect interests that conflict with, or may confiict with, the Company's interests.
At the start of every Board meeting the Chair asks for any interesis to be declared.

Employees well being

We want to create an environment where our people are engaged and have the opportunify to reach their fuli potentiat and
10 do this it is imporiant we are aware of and care for our teams' wellbeing, physical and mental health, A key part of this
is supporting and engaging colleagues on their physical and mental health, incluging an in-house team of clinical
employees and health and wellbeing specialists. This year LNER signed the Time to Change pledge and to train cver 100
employees to be mental health first aiders whe sipport cur team members across the business. We also closely measure
our employee engagement in order to identify ways to improve, using an annudt Speak from the Heart Survey and
measuring empioyee net advocacy.

All our team members have access to an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) which provides information, advice,
training and services to help them deal with events and issues in their work and personal lives, such as fegal advice to
help with family hea'th issues.

Customer, Stakeholders Business relationships

It is key the principal decisions by the Group enrich our business refationships to create value that drives economic growth
and social mohility. To build an effective and collaborative delivery parinerships with key business partners (e.g. NR} and
suppliers. To deliver a trusted and reliable service for aur customers. The Group keeps the business aligned with customer
expectations through several means, from regulardy capturing customer and stakeholder insight to having dedicated
customer insight teams and community partnerships

Guided by dedicated customer insight teams and using the latest survey tools, our train companies capture and monitor
their Net Advocacy Score. Our insight is used to develop and mainfain a culture of continuous improvement addressing
and implementing changes that have a positive impact on the customer journey, drive modal shift, convert non-considerers
and ensure that the voice of the customer is embedded within and at the heart of every business decision.

With regards to cammunity stakeholders, from political representatives to local authorities and chambers of commerte the
Company's train subsidiaries, run a calendar of regular engagement sessions to share plans and understand their priorities.
This includes Parliamentary drop-in events, talks at rait user group and business forums, and an annual stakehoider
conference, offering afl our $takeholdeérs the opportunity to engage with our plans and priorities in detail. LNER work with
start-ups and SMEs through their "LNER Future Labs" programme to help solve business challenges.

The Group's relationship with Network Rail continues to strengthen, including the £ast Coast Parinership which gives
LNER the opportunity to align chiectives, invest in a new joint performance fund and implementing a partnership approach
for upcoming major timetable change for the benefit of customers

By the end of the first full year completed for LNER under public ownership there is a dedicated team of Regionai
Commercial, who build business refationships in our key markets and a Brand Partnerships Team. Formal pannerships
with a range of big business and community arganisations on our route, gives us touch paints with those people we want
ta attract to use rail.

Political donations
There were no poiiticat donations made in the year,
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Sustajnability Reporting

By delivering our strategic objectives we will deliver value for maney to our key stakeholders in a safe environment where
people feel valued and we san promote sustainabie growth without compromising the ability of the future generations to
meet their needs.

Being a responsible business underpins the Group's business values, which include managing our impact on the
environment. In accordance with the requirements of the Group's (Directors' Report) and Limited Liability Parnerships
(Energy and Carbon Report) Ragulations S| 2018/1155, the performanase for LNER from 1 April 2019 to the 31 March 2020
and NTU's for the period 1 March 2020 to the 31 March 2020 is summarised below. No other group companies have any
significant impacts on these metrics,

Data has been collected and emission calculated in accordance with the Green House Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reperting Standard (GHG scope 1-3 emissions),

" Carbon . Carbon
o Total 1CO2e Total ICO2e
O
g 2020 2020 2019 2019
Energy
Total gas kwh 1
LNER 4,117,459 855 3,040,103 637
NTL . .1,351,916 249 - -
5,465,376 1,104 3,040,103 637
Traction diese! {litres) 1
LNER 21,019,909 70,977 23,178 877 83,514
NTL 3,799,731 . 12,882 - -
24,819,640 83,859 23,178,877 83,514
Total non-traction electricity kwh 2
LNER 13,167,026 4,164 12,765,740 4,503
NTL 2,322,081 . 734 - -
15,488,107 4,885 12,765,740 4,563
Traction electricily (EC4T) kwh 2
LNER 331,512,123 104,761 190,047,773 67,041
NTL 10,206,794 . 2,941 - -
341,718,817 107,682 180,047,773 67,041
Mileage claims personal vehicles (miles) 3
LNER 17,940 6~ - -
NTL 3,439 1 - -
21,379 T - -
Other environmental parameters
Total water (m3)
LNER 108,693 nla 110,189 nfa
NTL 26,471 nia - -
135,164 n/a 110,189 n/a
Waste % recycled
LNER 51% nfa 14% nia
NTL T1% nia - nia

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SWiH 9AE
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N Carbon . Carbon
@ Tetal tCOze Totat tcoze
=]
® 2020 2020 2019 2019
Intensity ratios
Carbon emissions per £million turmnover
LNER n/a 216 nfa nia
NTL nla 224 nla n/a

“This data includes estimates,
** Carbon conversion has been calculated from the primary unit in which the data was collected

Qur subsidiaries have maintained certification to 18014001 and 1SO50001 environmental and energy management
systems standards. We are aware of the ehvirenmental risks posed by both the maintenance and operation of our trains
and these sites and activities are regularly audited.

LNER's intraduction of the bi-mode Azuma trains (Class 800} and the concurrent phasing aut of the HST 125°s completed
in December 2019, resulted in a decrease in diesel consumption as the bi-mode capability has minimised diesel, runhing
under glectric wires.

2019/20 was a posilive year for LNER’s recycling across the business, the company achieved Valpak externally verified
Zero Waste to Landfill for their managed waste in June 2G19 and averall average recycling rates improved to 22%
compared o the previous year average of 15%, facilitated through; improving bin signage, engagement of freni fine staff,
the introduction of additional waste streams for tenants at selected stations, working with designers and Network Rail fo
achieve Department for Transport (DfT) approval for coffee cup collection points at LNER's staiions and building
relationships with external organisations to facilitate a prominent cup recycling scheme once the Covid situation permits.
Working as part of the RSSB working group onr waste management, we continually ensure we maintain an approach that
is consistent with industry.

Going Concern

Whilst the Directore note that since the onset of Covid revenue has declined across the two passenger rail subsidiaries,
with restrictions on travel, the Group's profit before interest and tax is in line with expeciations. The directors believe the
Group is a going concern for the following reasons.

Within our subsidiaries, both LNER and NTL have Services Agreement with the DIT where the subsidy / premium payments
from / to the DIT refiects the revenue and costs in the business. Under these agreement DfT is taking the revenue and
cosl risk resulting from Covid.

DOHL is wholly owned by the Secretary of State for Transport and is underwritten by the financial securily of the UK
government. The Secretary of State has set up the Company in connection with the exercise of his statutory duties. A
Funding Deed exists between the Company and Secretary of State whereby & loan facility of £500m has been provided to
the Campany. The facility term ends six month after all termination of alf the Services Agreements which is 2023 (TF19
facility will end six months after the Class 365 units are s0id). At the year end the Company has drawn dowh £172.1m,

The rail industry plays a critica) part in the recovery of the country fram Covid, economically and socially. Rail workers have
been defined as key workers (published by the Government on 12 March 2020) and statements from the Government such
as "The continued aperation of both passenger and freight transport is cntically impartant to eur resitience as a country” on
23 March 2020 and other sitnilar subsequent statemeats underline the importance of the recovery from Covid pandemic.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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Train Fleet (2019) Limited made a £17.8m loss after tax and had net liabilities at 31 March 2020 of £1.7m. T£2018 has
options that will allow it to sale the fieet of trains and repay its funding loan, which is not due for repayment untl after
options are exercised. TF19 also has access to additional financial resources from its parent company if reguired.

Through the Cversight Committee and other communication, the Directors remain in ongaing dialogue with representatives
from the Department for Transport abouf the fulure of the Company.

Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

indemnification of Directors and QOfficers

The Campany maintains Directors' and Officers’ Liability insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought against
the Directors of the Group. The Company has indemnified each of The Gompany’s Directors and other officers of the Group
against certain liabilities that may be incurred as a result of their offices.

Directors’ statement of disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of the Directors’ Repant confirm that insofar as the Directors are
aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined in section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and they have taken all the steps required of them as Directors in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information (as defined) and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

Directors' statement of disclosure of information to auditor
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCaopers LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the

Companies Act,

The financial statements on pages 28 to 62 were approvad by the Board of Directars on 30 July 2020 and signed on
its behalf by

¢

Robin Gisby
CEOQ and Accounting Officer
30 July 2020
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' AND ACCOUNTING OFFICERS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with appiicable

law and regutation.

Company law reguiras the Direclors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors
have prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and company financial statements in accordance with Internationai Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and
of the profit ot loss of the group and company for that period. In additions tc company law and IFRSs, the Directors and
Accounting officer must adhere to the reporting requirements set out in the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2019-
20 (FReM) as issued by HM Treasury, to the extert that the FReM is consistent with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006,

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to!

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. state whether applicable IFRSs as adopied by the Eurapean Union have been followed for the group financial
statements and IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union have been followed for the company financiat
statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and expfained in the financial statements;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group
and company will continue in business.

The Directars and Accounting Officer are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and
hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors and Accounting Officer are responsible for keeping adequate accounting fecords that are sufficient to show
and explain the group and company's fransactions and disclose with reasenable acguracy at any time the financial position
of the group and company and enable them to enstre that the financiat statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ and Accounting Officer’s confirmations

The Directors and Accounting Officar consider that the annual repont and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the group and company's pesition and
performance, business mode! and strategy.

Registered Office; Albany House Bth Floor, 94-98 Pelty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required by the Government Financial Reporling Manual 2018-20, the Company is required to prepare a governance
statement. This Corperate Governance Repar is intended fo provide an understanding of the Company and Group's
governance procedures, and demonstrate how the Company and Group seek 1o adhere te the principles of good corporate
govemance where appropriate for their size and operation. The report describes how the relevant principles and provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance in Central Government Departments: Code of Good Practice (Corperate Governance
Code) were applied to the Company and Group during the financial year and will continue to be relevant for the forthcoming
financia! year. The Company and Group have complied with the relevant principles and provisions of the Cerporate
Governance Code.

The Board of Directors

The Board currently consists of the Non-Executive Chairman, two Exscutive Directors being the Chief Executive and the
Finance Director together with three further Non-Executive Directors during the year and up 1o the date of signing the
financiat statements. It usually meets every four weeks and 18 responsible for monitoring the operational and financia
performance of the Company and its subsidiary companies, reviewing progress against the Company’s budgets and setting
and reviewing its business plans.

The Board of the Company met on thiffleen occasions in the period from 1 April 2019 {0 31 March 2020. Details of the
Directors' attendance at each of these meetings can be found in the Directors' report on page 15,

The Directors are satisfied that the current Boasd has the breadth of business, financial and operational experience
necessary 1o manage effectively an organisation of the size and type of the Company.

Information and Board development

The Board receives detailed briefing papers and reports on the business to be conducted at each meeting in advance of
the meeting. These papers are provided in advance to allow appropriate time for members of the board to review and
challenge the data used in the papers and reports discussed at each meeting. Each briefing paper and report is prepared
by the appropriate individual who is responsible for the relevant area of the business.

Alt Directors have access to the advice and services of the Campany Secretary who, if necessary, has access to external
legal advice. Board and othér meetings are attended by specialist external company secretarial support, Each Director
can, if necessary, seek independent professional advice at the Campany's expense in the furtherance of their duties.

Directers receive induction training on appeintment to the Board which is taitored to their individual needs and experience,
and are offered further specialist advice as they may require. Information is provided to Directors on their responsibilities,
regulations and legal abligations.

As part of deveiopment of the Company, members of the Board have met and continue to meet a range of key officials
frorm within the Depariment for Transport and also broader stakeholders.

Framework Agreementand QOversight Commitiee

A Framework Agreement exists between the Company and the Department for Transport which sets out the broad
tframework within which the Company will operate. The document does nct though create legally vaiid, binding and
enforceable abligations an the parties. The Company's responsibilities include providing stewardship and oversight of and
managing the mobilisation of the Company and any cther operating company established in connection with the Secretary
of Stata exercising his duties under Section 30 of the Railways Act.
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As part of the requirements of the Framework Agreement, an Oversight Committee meeting is held normally on a four
weekly basis and chaired by a senior representative from the DT,

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is chaired by Claire Bullen an independent individual with appropriate expertise. Richard
Gearge {non-executive Chair), Dave Bennett, Tim Buxton and Chris Gibb (all non-executive Directors) are members of the
Committee, and Robin Gisby {Chief Executive and Accounting Officer) and Richard Harrison (Finance Director) also aftend
meetings of this Committee when appropriate.

Under its terms of reference the Committee keeps under review the Company's interhial and external financial statlements
ang reports to ensure that they reflect best practice.

The Committee ensures that the internat audit function has appropriate access to information to enable it to perform its
function effectively and in accordance with relevant professional standards, and that it has adequate standing within the
Company. It considers audit reports on the Company from the internal auditors and reviews and monitors management's
responsiveness to the findings and recommendations.

The Committee is responsible far making recommendations to the Board in respect of the appointment and re-appointment
of the Company's external auditors and recommends to the Board the audit fee to be paid to the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Group Remuneration Committee is chaired by Richard George and includes the Non-Executive Directers. The
Executive Directors attend as required. Details of the Commitiee’s activities along with the Remuneration and staff report
can be found on page 23.

Directors and their Interests

The current Directors of the DOHL Board are listed on page 15. A Register of Direclors’ Interests is maintained by the
Company Secretary through whom public inspection can be arranged. None of the Directars have any interests, such as
shares in the companies within the Group.

Financial reporting
The Directars have a commitment to best practice in the Company's financial reporting and systems. A statement of the
Directors’ Responsibilities for preparing the financial statements may be found on page 20.

Directors® and Officers’ liabliity insurance
The Company has Directors’ and Officers’ fiability insurance cover in place as permitted by the Coempanies Act 2006.

Financial Risk Management

The Board is cantinually reviewing the exposure to liquidity and cash flow risk. For the year ended 31 March 2020 the
Company's nsk management contrals operated welf and the Company was not exposed to any significant risk in these
areas,

Internal controls and risk management

The Board ig also responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the
Group's goals and objectives. Internal Gontrols and governance have been reviewed by the Government Intemal Audit
Agency during the year, and will continue to be reviewed. The key risks and uncertainties of the Group are noted in the

Registered Office: Aibany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, L.ondon, SW1H 9AE
Page 22



DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Annua! Report and Financial Statements — Corporate Governance Report continued
Far the year ended 31 March 2020

Strategic Report on page 12 and the Board is satisfied that these are being satisfacterily managed. There have been rno
ministerial directions given, or any significant lapses of protective security in the year.

REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT

The remuneration policies and practices gives due weight to proper management and use and utilisation of public
resources, it ensures greater alignment batweaen risk and individual reward, discourage excessive risk taking and short-
termism, encourage more effective risk management and support positive behaviours and strong and appropriate conduct
culture within the company.

Directors
The remuneration related to the financial year 1 March 2019 to 31 March 2020 is as fokows, Full year equivalents for the
period 24 June 20148 to 31 March 2019 are in brackets:

Satary/fees Pension and Year ended Period ended
other benefits 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
£'0600 £000 £'000 £000
Rabin Gisby 195 - 195 150 (195)
Richard Harrison 178 - 175 135 {175)
Richard George 173 - 173 27
Tim Buxton 129 - 129 13
David Bannett - - - -
Chris Gibb 7 - 7 -
679 - E79 328

Employees

A culture of inclusion is important the Group and we continue to work hard to address any discrepancies and ensure we
have a diverse workforce reflective of the customers and communities we serve. The Group work to a policy and promote
an environment of equal opporunity and one free from discrimination in which no employee receives less favourable
treatment. We are committed to; improving gender balance. BAME diversity, ethnicity demographic and reducing gender
pay gap within our workforce. We are alsqg committed to the development of our people. Some of the sieps lowards
improving these key areas include;
* Inspiring the next generation by raising awareness of the career opportunities available through our partnerships
with schools,
«  Affracting talent, using our application tracking system {ATS) to effectively manitor the diversity of candidates at
each stage of the application process.

+  Developing talent by creating opportunibies for new roles and upskilling our existing warkiorce through our

Apprenticeship Frogramme.

= Working coltaboratively with our Inélusion Netwark and trade union colleagues tc make our polices and ways of

working morg inclusive creating a great place to work.
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In March 2020 LNER was accepted on the Education and Skills Funding Council (ESFA) register of approved training
providers, This aliows LNER to deliver training under apprenticeship standards, providing trainees with a professional

quaiification.

We continue 1o strive 1o build a diverse organisation, Across the Group 78% of roles are occupied by male and 22% by
female with LNER winning the highest gender balance workforce award at the annual Womign in Rail Awards, (58% male
and 42% female) in recagnition of our efforts to improve gender balance to date, Within the Company the split between
employed males and females are 73% and 27% respectively.

The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the candidate's particular
aptitudes and abilihes are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job. Opportunities are available to
disabled employees for training, career development and promotion. Where existing employees become disabled, the
Group provides continuing employment wherever practicable in the same or an alternative position and to provide

appropriate training to achieve this aim.

DORL’s subsidiaries werk tagether to share best practice, knowledge and benefits from the synergies of the Group.

Y P
\'»’{ i bl "y
Raobin Gisby
CEQ and Accounting Officer
30 July 2020
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of DfT OLR Holdings Limited
For the year snded 31 March 2020 L o '

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cpinion
In our opinien, DT OLR Holdings Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements (the "financial
statements”):

» give a true and far view of the state of the group's and af the company's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the
group's toss and the group's and the company's cash flows for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the Eurgpean Union and, as regards the company's financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
pravisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, inctuded within the Annual report and financial statements (the "Annual Report™),
which comprisa: the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2020; the consolidated
income statement and consclidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated and company
statements of cash flows, and the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;
and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accardance with International Standards an Auditing (UK} ("15As (UK)") and applicable faw. Qur
responsibilities undar 1SAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our repert. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur apinion,

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audi of the
finrancial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to repart in respect of the following mattars in relation to which 1SAs (UK) require us ta report to you
whare:

« the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

+ the directors have not disclosed n the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s and company’'s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
acceunting for a period of af least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predictad, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group's
and company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Repert other than the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements
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does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otharwise
explicitly stated in this repot, any form of assurance thergon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our Knowledge obtained
in the gudit, or otherwise appears {0 be materially misstated. if we identify an apparent materiai inconsistency or matedal
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material risstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of fhe other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is @ matetial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based an these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, 1SAs (UK) require us
also to report ceriain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 is consistent with the financiai statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements,

in fight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their envircnment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report,

Responsibilities for the financial staterents and the audit

Rasponsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fuily in the slaterment of directors' and accounting officers' responsibilities in respact of the financial
statements set out ¢n page 20, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accardance
with the applicable framewaork and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible
for such internal control as they defermine is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that arg free from
material misstatement, whether due te fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the direclors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of aceounting unless the directors either intend o liguidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no
realstic alternative tut to do so.

Auditors’ responsibitifies for the audit of the financial staterments

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from materiai
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high levei of assurance, but is nof a guaranptee that an audit conducted in accordarice with [SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when i exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
materal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's websile

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companlies Act 20085 and for no other purpose. We do nat, in giving these opinicns, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or fo any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinian:
«  we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit; or
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
s the company financial statements are nat in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions o report arising from this responsibiiity.

Andy Ward (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
teeds

31 July 2020

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited ‘
Consolidated Income stafement
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Note E000 £000

Revenue
Passenger income 2 799,782 522,748
Qther operating income 2 119,768 58,019
Tetal Revenuye 919,540 680,785
Other operating costs 3 (918,062} (628,235)
Operating profit 1,478 52,530
Finance income G 885 970
Finance and similar charges 6 (10.296) -
(Loss)Profit before taxation (7,932) 53,500
Tax on (loss)/profit a {1,077) (12,274)
{Loss)/Profit for the financial year (9,010) 41,226

The income statement has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing cperations.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, The Company has not presented its own income statement. The
loss of the Company for the financial year was £36,236 (2019: loss of £160) before dividends.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this income statement.

Registered Office; Albany House 8th Flogr, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Faor the year ended 31 March 2020

Note
{Loss} for the year
Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or {loss):
Actuarizl gain on retirement benefit obligations 22
Deferred tax defined benefit pension transferred in 8

Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss)

Total comprehensive profit for the year

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2018

£000 E£000
{8,010} 44,206
24,828 28
(4,661) {4)
19,867 22
10,857 41,248

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 24-88 Petty France, London, SW1H SAE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited _
Conisolidated Staterment of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2020

ASSETS
Non-cursent assets
intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Retirement benefit asset (het)

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other regeivables: amounts due within one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current labilities

Trade and other payables

Non-current Habilitles
Trade and other payables

Provisions for liabiiities

Total liabilities
Met assets

EQUITY

Qrdinary share capital
Capital contribution
Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ funds

Note

10
11
22

12
13

14
15

17
18

At 31 March At 31 March
2020 2019
£0800 £000

23,466 28,071
836,361 17,955
80,737 28,073
741,084 75,095
8,718 2,142
138,730 96,334
228,126 73,802
376,572 172,278
4,117,636 247 377
(670,468) (173,109)
{308,228) (94)
{15,982) (6,246}
(321,211) 6,340)
(991,678) {179,449)
125,957 67,928
73,853 26,681
62,104 41,247
125,957 67,928

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position. The financial statements on pages

28 to 62 were approved by the beard of Directors on 30 July 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

[ -3

Ve

Robin Gisby

CEO and Accounting Officer
30 July 2020

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floer, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2020

At 31 March At 31 March
2020 2019
Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Tangible assets 10 i3 17
Investments 14 85,994 67,929
868,007 67,946
Current assets
Trade and other receivables: amotints due within ane year 13 134,484 5,291
Cash at bank and in hand 102,541 40,443
237,028 45,734
Total assets 323,032 113,680
LIABILITIES
Current Habilities
Trade and other payables 14 (197,075} (45,752}
Non-current liabilities
Provisions for liahiiities 15 - -
Total liabilities (197,075) (45,752)
Net assets 125,957 57,928
EQUITY
Ordinary share capital 17 . -
Capital contribution 18 16,100 -
Retained sarnings 109,867 67,928
Total shareholders’ funds 125,957 67,928

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement cf financial position. The financial statements on pages
28 to 62 were approved by the beard of Directors on 30 July 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

A,

Richard Harrisan
Finance Director
30 July 2020

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
Company tegistration number: Q7141122
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
As at 31 March 2020

(Loss)/Profit before taxation

Adjustments for.
Depreciation and amortigation

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Pension valuation adjustments
Impairment an fixed assets

Finance income

Interest expense (IFRS16)
Corporation tax paid

fnterest received

(Increase) in trade and other receivables
(Increase) in inventories

Increase in trade and other payables
Capital grants received

Cash Inflow from operating activities

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets
Purchase of fixed assets

Cash outflow from investing activities

Payment of lease liabilities
Funding loan received by parent
Funding loan repaid to parent
Grant in aid

Cash inflow from financing activities

Met cash generated from activities

Net increase In ¢ash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at peginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

21

21

18

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
(7,833) 53,500
117,461 11,653
2,087 893
11,663 4775
14,865 -
{885) (970)
10,296 -
{9,650) (4.678)
102 294
{37,641) (96,284)
(6,574) (2,142)
137,290 166,101
1,629 99
229,710 133,243
10 309
(166,230) {59,878)
(166,220) {59,569}
{96,272} -
172,074 799313
(68) {79,864)
16,100 -
91,834 69
155,324 73,743
155,324 73743
73,802 58
229,126 73,802

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H SAE
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DfT CLR Holdings Limited
Company Statement of Cash Flows
As at 31 March 2020

Loss before taxation
Adjustments for.

Deaprectation and amortisation
Finance income

Interest received

{Increase) in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Woerking Capital - subsidiary funding {outfiow)/inflow

Cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Dividend received
Purchase of fixed assets

Purchase of ordinary shares

Cash inflowf{outflow) from investing activities

Interest Paid

Funding loan received by parent
Funding toan repaid to parent
Grant in aid

Cash inflow from financing activities

Net cash gengrated from activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

18

18

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 E00C
(49) -

7 4

(419) -
1,473 -
{12,347) (5,172}
20,250 4,504
(167,766) 41,000
(148,850) 40,336
40,000 -
{3) (21)
(18,100) -
23,897 {21}
{1,055} -
172,074 79,933
(88) (79,864}
18,100 -
187,051 69
62,098 40,384
62,098 40,384
40,443 59
102,549 40,443

Registered Office: Atbany House 8th Ficor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Hoidings Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 March 2020

Ordinary Capital Retained Total
share contribution earnings ghareholder
capital funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
As at 31 March 2018 - - 4h} (1}
Profit for the year - - 41,228 41,226
Other comprehensivg income for the year “ N 22 22
Total compretiensive profit for {he year - - 41,248 41,248
Net defined benefit agset transfered in - 32,148 - 32,146
Deferred tax on defined benefit pension (5,469) (5,485)
transferred in - - )
As at 31 March 2019 - 26,681 41,247 67,928
Loss for the year - - (9,010) {9,010)
Other comprehensive income for the yaar - - 19,867 19,867
Total comprehensive profit for the year - - 10,867 10,857
Grant in aid (note: 18) - 16,100 - 16,100
Net defined benefit asset transferred in
{note: 22) - 39,154 - 39,164
Deferred tax on defined benefit pension (8.082) (8.082)
transferred in i . '
As at 31 March 2020 - 73,853 52,104 126,957

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 84-98 Petly France, London, SWiH 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Company Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2018

Result for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

As at 31 March 2019
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive profit for the year

Grant in aid {note: 18)

As at 31 March 2020

Ordinaty Capital Retained Total
share capital Contribution earnings sharehoider
funds

£004G £000 £0G0 £000

- - 1)) ()

- 67,529 67,929

- - 67,929 67,929

- - 67,928 67,928

" - (36) {38)

- . 41 965 41,966

, - 41,929 41,929

- 16,100 . 16,100

- 16,100 109,857 125,857

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, Londcon, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limnited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1 Accounting policies

The Company (s a private limited company limited by shares and registesed in England. The address of The Company’s
ragistered office is shown on page 3 and a description of the Company's principal activities are set out on page 14.

The principal accounting policies are sef out below.

a} Basis of Preparalion
The finangiza! statements have teen prepared on a geing concesn basis, as explained in the Directors report,

These financiat statemenis have been prepared in accordance with applicable IFRS, as adopted by the European Union,
the Campanies Act 2006 and the Governmens Financial Reporting Manual 2019-20 (FReM). The Company has adopted
and interpreted the FReM, as issued by HM Treasury, to the extent that the FReM is consistent with the requiremenis of
the Companies Act 2006.

Where there is a cheice of accaunting policy, the one judged to be most appropriate to the particuiar circumstances of the
Company for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the Company
are described below. They have been applied consistently to items that are considered materal to the accounts. The
Company has taken advantage of the exemption availabie under section 408 of Chapter 4 of Part 15 of the Comganies
Act to omit the Company's individual profit and loss account and only repen the group profit and less account.

b) Business Combinations

During the Financial year 2019-2020 DT OLR Heldings gain two additional subsidiaries Train Fleet (2018) Limited on 13
August 2019 and Northern Trains Limited on 1 March 2020 in addition to London North Eastern Railway (LNER). Al
three entities are wholty owned by DfT OLR Holding limited {parent} and together the four entilies as well as other non-
material entities comprises the “Group”. The consolidated accounts are prepared using the business combinations,
purchase methed. Measuring the aggregated cosis and allocations of the Group assets, fiabifities are based on their
aggregated fair values.

c) Revenus

i) Passenger Rajl Services
Passenger income represents amounts agreed as attributed to Londen North Eastern Railway (LNER) and Northem Trains

Limited (NTL} by the income allocation systems of the Rail Settlement Plan Limited {"RSP"), mainly in respect of passenger
receipts. Income is attributed based principally on madels of certain aspects of passengers’ travel patterns and, to a lesser
extent, from allocations agreed for specific revenue flows. The attributed share of season ticket incorme can involve some
estimation for example revenue is deferrad within creditors, and released to the income statement over the year of the
relevant season ticket.

Tickets to travel on a train operaling company's services can be sold by other train operating companies as wall as other
travel refailers. Furthermore, certain tickets for train travel can be sold which provide the holder with a choice of train
operators to fravel with. In Bght of those factors, passenger income Includes amounts receivable from individuals or groups
of individuals to travel on UK rail services that is altributed to {rain operating companies by the Rabiway Setflement Plan
Limited. RSP administers the income allocation system within the UK rail industry and allocates revenue to operators
principally on agreed madels of route usage.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Pelty France, London, SW1H GAE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued}

c} Revenue (continued)

Procedures exist to aliow operaters to challenge the appropriateness of revenue afiocation where the revenue allocated to
LNER and NTL is subsequently adjusted, the effect of the adjustment is recognised in the income statement in the perlod
in which we arg made aware of it. Where an adjustment results in additional revenue being attributed to LNER and NTL,
the additional revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably estimated and it is highly probable that
the economic benefits will flow 1o LNER or NTL.

Delay Repay customner compensation, which is compensation paid to customers who have experienced a defay of more
than 30 minutes for LNER and 15 minutes for NTL on their journey, is treated as a reduction in passenger income rather
than as an operating cost in line with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Other operating income is generated in the course of the Company's ordinary activities and is derived from ticket
commissians, car park income, station trading income, catering sales, depot and staticn access payments and the provision
of goods or services to other frain operating comipanies and excludes VAT, Revenue is recognised when a customer
abtains control of guods or services and has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the goods or services.
Revenue from services is recognised on the basis of agreed rates and is recognised over time over the period the services
are rendered. Commission income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant

agreements.

Deferred revenue is generated when passengers purchase tickets for travel i future financial periods. This is then released
in the same financial pericd as the travel. The value of the deferred income is reparied through the income aliccation
system detail.

i)y  Train Rental
Revenue recognised from the rental income received from the operating leasing of the Train Fleet (2019) Limited's fleet of

trains is credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

d} Performance incentive payments

Performance incentive payments received from or made to Netwosk Rail by the rail subsidiaries in respect of rail operationai
performance are recognised in the same periad that the performance relates to and are classified as operating costs.
Accrued income is generated from performance payments made to LNER and NTL by Network Rail which is then settled
in a future period, The income is generated when Network Rail take possession of the track to do maintenance work or
due to on the day disruption caused by an entity other than LNER or NTL,

8) Fixed service payments

Where a Service Agreement is in place with the Department for Transport (DIT), 'Fixed service payments' are either
received from or made to the DfT and are recognised on an accrual basis. Where a Franchise subsidy is stated in the
Service Agreement from the DIT, income is recognised in revenue. Franchise premium payments are recognised as a cost
in the business. In line with their Service Agreement, LNER generally makes Franchise premium payments to the Dft, while
NTL receives a Franchise subsidy.

f} Taxation
Tax, current and deferred is calculated using tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of

Financial Position date.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-88 Petty France, London, SW1H SAE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Corporation tax is provided on taxabie profils or losses at the current rate applicable. Tax charges and credits are
accounted for through the same primary statement as the refated pre-tax item.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from ar paid to taxation authorities
using the {ax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date.

g) Deferred lax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all materiat temporary differences that have originated, but not reversed, by the
Statement of Financial Position date. Deferred tax is measured an a non-discounted basis at tax rates that are expected
to apply in the periods in which the timing differences reverse.

Deferred tax asseis are recognised where their recovery is considered more likely than not in that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversai of underiying timing differances can be deducted.

h) Tangible assels

i}y Passenger Rail Services and DOHL

Tangible assets are stated at histonic cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
to write off the cost less estimated residual value of fixed assets over their expected useful economic lives as follows:
{.easehold land and buildings 3 - 10 years or lease term

Plant and equipment 3 - 10 years of lease term

ity Train Rental
Tangible assets ara shown at their historic cost less accumutated deprecration and any provisien for impairment. Cost
includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable o bringing the assef to its working condition for
its intended use Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation less estimated residual
value of fixed assets over their expectsd useful economic lives as follows:

Plant and equipment 1 - 25 years or expected useful life where known

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated untit they are available for use and on completion are transferred
to the appropriste asset class. During the year an impairment review was carried out on TF19's assets, resulting in an
impairment expenses on the Class 365 fleets of £11m reparted in operating costs.

As par of their net assetsfliabilties, subsidiaries tangible assets are recognised under investrments in the Company's
statement of financial position. Net assets/Mabilities are measured at fair value.

i) Intangible assets

Infangible asseis across the Group are shown at their original historic cost net of amortisation and any provision for
impairment, which is based on the lower of depreciated repfacement cost and value in use. Where there is no value in use,
the asset is valued using deprecisted replacement cost. Cost includes the original purchase price of the assets and costs
attributable to bringihg the asset to its warking condition for its intended use.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Fioor, 94-98 Petly France, London, SW1H BAE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Mobilisaticn costs have been capitalised and amortised over the expected life of the service agreement. These comprise
rebranding, marketing, recruitment, media, uniform, system and professional services costs. Amortisation is charged on a
siraight-line basis over the life of the service agreement and is recorded in operating costs in the Income Statement
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business combination are capitalised at cost.

Amortisation of intangibte assets is calculated on ihe straight-line method to write-off the cost of each asset over the
expected Jife of the service agreement,

The need far any impairment write-down is assessed hy comparing the carrying value of the asset against the higher of
net reafisable value and vaiue in use,

The Company does not hold any intangible assets. As part of their net assets/liabilities, subsidiaries intangible assets are
recognised under investments in the Company's statemem of financial position,

J)  Right of use assets
Right ¢f use assets comprise rolling stock, offices and other property l¢ases plus depot equipment. At the lease
commencement the Company recognises both a right of use asset and a lease liability.

Right of use assets are initially maasured at a cost which includes:

* the initial measurement of the lease liability using the present value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group will use their incremental borrowing rate;

» the lease payments made before or after comrmencement, less the lease incentives received;

+ an estimate of the costs incurrad upon disassembling and eliminating the underlying asset, inciuding
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms of the lease.

After the commencement date the Group measures its nght of use assets using a cost model. Right of use assets are
depreciated cver the shorter of the lease term and the expecled period of the Company’s current service agreement with
the DfT They are presented as part of tangible assets in note 10. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that
contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component based on their
relative stand-alone prices.

Corrgspuonding lease kabilities are presented and accounted for as current and non-cusrent liabilities in note 21, After the
commencement date the Graup measures its right of use liabilities by increasing the carrying amount to refiect the interest
on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect new measurements or changes in the lease.

k} Inventories

Inventories are valued at the fower of ¢ost and net realisable value on a weighted average cos! basis, Cost comprises
direct costs and excludes bomawing costs. Net realisable value is tfie estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of
business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Where necessary, provision is made for obsclete, slow moving
and defective inventory.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Fioor, 94-98 Petty Francs, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1 Accounting palicies {continuad)

I} Granis

Capita! grants are credited fo deferred grant income and released to operating cost within the Inceme Statement over the
eatimated useful economic lives of the related assets fo depreciation. Deferred capital grant income is presented and
accounted for within current and non-current liabilities.

m) Retiremant banefit obligations

DOHL does not contribute to a defined benefit pension scheme. Employees are auto enrollad into a ‘NEST' workplace
pension scheme, atthough may opt out. Employees can contribute either, 3% to 5% of their salaries, with DOHL contributing
a fixed percentage. TF19 has no pension scheme.

LNER and NTL contributes to a defined benefit pension scheme within the Railway Pension Scheme (RPS) on behalf of
the majority of their employees. Full detaifs are provided in note 22.

Both LNER and NTL are responsible for the relevant funding of their section of the RPS during the period of the service
agreement. In contrast to the pension schemes operated by most businesses, the RPS is a shared cost scheme, which
means that costs are formally shared 60% employer and 40% employee.

The trustees complete a full actuarial valuation trienniaily, separately for each section of the RPS, but the obligation is
updated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method for financial reporting purposes. The
current service cost and gains and losses on sefflements and curtailments are recognised in staff pension costs within
operating costs in the Income Staterment.

Past service costs are included in operating costs where the benefits have vested, otherwise they are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, The expected return on assets of funded defined benefit schemes and the
interest on pension scheme liabilities comprise the finance element of the pension cost and are included in interest costs.

Actuarnial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, changes in actuarial assumptions and amendmaents to
pensicn plans are charged or credited to the staiement of other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
The charges in respect of defined contribution schemes are recognised when they are due.

n) Accounting for parficination in Railways pension schema

As disclosed in note 22, both LNER and NTL apply a "current service period adjustment” to the amounts recorded in the
Statement of Financial Position for the RPS. This represents the rermaining element of the service operator's 60% share
of the IAS 12 deficit or surplus after determining the amount of any deficits the subsidianes are required to fund (or surplus
it is entitled to recover) aver the remaining service period.

This adjustment can give rise o a net pension asset, representing the expected exceass of the Income Statement expense
under IAS 19 for service cost and net interest over the contributions payable over the remainder of the service agreement.
The economic benefit of the asset is expected to be realised through the lower cash contributions over the remaining period
of the service agreement, and therefore upon the expiry of the service period, there will be no pension asset (or liability)
remaining. This judgement is consistent with the industry wide accounting treatment for the RPS that was agreed on
adoption of IFRS in 2005.

The Group has no legal or constructive ebligation to pay further contributions into a defined cantnbution scheme if the fund
has insufficient assets to pay all emplayees benefits relating to employea service in the current and prior periods.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Pefty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued)

The franchise pension scheme assetliability is recognised as the net total of the present value obligations under the
schemne minus the fair vaiue of scheme's assets at the reporting date.

The pension scheme asset calculated at the transfer date of LNER and NTL is shown as a capital cantribution directly from
Virgin Trains East Coast Limited {for LNER) and Arriva Rail North Limited (for NTL) in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on page 34 as the pensions were transferred as part of therr service agreement with the DfT. The DT
is a related party and the transfer of the scheme has therefore been accounted for as a capital contribution in equity

o) Provisions

Provisions for current chiigations and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be reéquired o setile the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisiens are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the obligation.
Provisions are split between those falling due within one year and those falling greater than one year.

A dilapidations provision held in relation to legacy rolling stock are based on expected costs of restoring the leased assets
te the required state be'ore being returned to the lessor.

The amount of any provision is re-assessed at each Statement of Financial Posilion date. Any increase or decrease
required to the amaunt of the provision is charged or credited to the income statement.

p) Investmants

Fixed asse! investments are camied in the Slatemen! of Financial Position at fair value. All the fixed assets investments
are subject to an impairment review at any time if events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value
may not be recoverabie.

1} Financial instrumenis
Financial instruments heid by the Group are frade and other receivables, trade and other payables and cash.

Trade receivables are recogrised inttially at the amount of consideration that is anconditional. They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a fifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit fosses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

s) Derivalive financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as itabilities when the fair value is negative. For those derivatives designated as hedges and for which hedge accounting
is desired, the hedging relationship is documented at its inception. This documentation identifies the hedging instrument.
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how effectiveness will be measured throughout its
duration. Such hedges are expected at inception to be highly effective.

Registered Office Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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DfT OLR Holdings Limited
Notes te the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Any gains or losses arising from revaluing derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recognised through the
statement of comprehensive income or the income statement depending onh the effectiveness. The effective portion of the
gain or loss is recognised through the staterent of comprehensive income while the ineffective portion is recegnised in

the income statement.

t) Critical estimates and judgements

Preparation of the financial statements, in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards ang the FReM, requires
Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and
accompanying notes, Actual outcomes could differ from those astimated. The Directors believe that the accounting policies
and estimation fechnigques discussed below represent these that require the greatest exercise of judgement. The Directors
have used their best judgement in deterrining the estimales and assumptions used in these areas but a different set of
judgements could result in material changes to the Group’s reported financial parformance and/or financial position.

The estimates and judgements summarised below cover those regarded by the Directors as critical to the Group's
reporting.

i, Pensions - estimate

The determination of LNER's and NTl's pension benefit obligation and expense for defined benefit pension schemes is
dependent on the selection by the Directors of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such 2amounts. Those
assumptions include the discount rate, the annual rate of increase in future salary levels and morality rates. The Directors’
assumptions are based on actual historical experience and external data. While we believe that the assumptions are
appropriate, significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect the
pension obligation and future expense.

The pension assumptions may vary due to actual changes in market conditions following the Statement of Financial
Position date but IAS 19 requires the assumplions io be set based on the market conditichs prevailing at the Statement of
Financial Position date. The pension assumpltions are also affected by judgements the Directors are required to make on
matters that cannot be directly nbserved from market prices such as life expectancies, future pay increases, harder to
valye assets and the criteria for bonds fo be included in the population from which the discount rate is determined. Note
22 provides information on the sensitivity of pension benefit obligations to changes in assumptions.

il. LNER service agreament ferm assumption - 6stimate

An assumption of a 3 year service agreement was used in the prior year financial statements and during the year to March
2020. This was based on the service agreemerd (which initially ran to 27 June 2020) of 2 years with an additional year for
the tendering process required to award a new service agresment, This assumption has been updated at the year end to
include a further direct award from 27 June 2020 until 24 June 2023. This judgement affects these financial statements in
respect of pension accounting, mobitisation amortisation and reperting for leases under IFRS16.

. NTL service agreement lerrm agsumption - estimate

An assumption of a 2 year Services Agreement has been used in these financial statements. This is based on the current
Services Agreement (which runs to 1 March 2022}, This affects these financiat statements m respect of mobilisation costs
capitalisation and amortisation, pension accounting, operating leases and reporting for leases under (FRS 16,
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

iv. Accounting for subsidiaries investment - judgement

The investments in LNER, NTL and TF19 has been accounted for at fair value based on the net asset position at 39
March 2020. DOHL believes the assets it has acquired cannot independently generate cash flows and therefore using
netl assets as the fair value is considered the most appropriate method.

v. Accounting for transfer of assets - judgement

The transfer of assets and liabilities from Arriva Rail North Limited to NTL on 1 March 2020 has been accounted for as an
asset acquisition. The assets acquired do nat constitite a business, as they do not represent an “integrated set of activities”
as required to be defined as a business. This is due to reliance on other assets in the rail network, not owned by NTL, that
are reguired in order for the assets acquired 1o operate fully, and to generate cash flows.

vi, Measurement of lease liabilities and right of use assets - judgement & estimate

The application of IFRS 16 requires the Group entities to make judgements that affect the measurement of right of use
assets and lease liabilities (note 21). These include assessing whether a contract includes a lease, determining variable
lease components, contract term and appropriate discount rate used to measure lease liabilities.

Items oufside the scope of IFRS 16 include contracts with Network Rail for access to the railway (track access)
infrastructure and access charges for stations, short term leases which inciude roiling stock handed back during the year,
low value leases and maintenance and variable lease components for rofling stock retained during the year.

u) Accounting standards adopted in the year
{FRS 16 ‘Lease Contracts’

IFRS 186 eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases and instead introduces a single
lessee accounting model. Lease contracts are now recagnised in right of use assets and in lease liabilities representing
the discountad value of future payments.

Leases within the scope of application of IFRS 16 for the Company comprise rolling stock, offices and other property leases
plus depot equipment,

Right of use assets of F489m and lease liabilities of £493m were recognised as at 31 March 2020, The Company
transitioned to IFRS 16 in accordance with the simplified approach defined in IFRS 16.

On transition the right of use asset costs were measured as the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by payments in
advance, intentives received and where applicable repair costs. Lease costs of low value assets and shori-term leases
{less than 12 months) are recognised directly in expenses. As part of the initial 2pplication ¢f IFRS 16 the Company chose
1o apply the accounting for short-term leases in IFRS 16 to leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the
date of initial application.

The reassessment of LNER's service periad from June 2020 to June 2023 fed to a remeasurement of the right df use
assets and fiabifities during the year.

For operating lease commitments at 31 March 2020 which are not within scope of IFRS 18, disclosed has been made
under IAS 17. These include contracts with Network Rail for access to the railway infrastructure and access charges for
stations. The commitments also included ticket barriers now classified as short term leases and 1T equiptment now classified
as low value leases and amounts for rofling stock include maintenance components of the leases,
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2 Revenue
All revenue originates in the United Kingdom.
The Directors consider that the whole of the activities of the Group constitute a single class of business consisting of
passenger, irain rental and other related operating income as disclosed in the income: statement. Revenue during the year
to 31 March 2020 ingludes eight rail periods from Train Fleet (2019) Limited {traded from 13 August 2019} and ane rail

period on Narthern Trains Limited (traded from 1 March 2020).

Revenue, excluding value added tax (VAT) where applicable, is comprised of.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

EDOC £000

Passenger revenue 824,630 636,586
Delay Repay (21,848) {13,840)
Passenger income 799,782 622,748
Other operating incoma 119,768 58,018
Total revenue 919,540 680,765

Other cperating income compnises of car park income, commercial property income, railway Station access intomne,
maintenance income, fuel sales, on board catering income, commissions receivaole and a ‘Fixed service payment received
from the Department of Transport (DIT), £54 4m (2019:£nil).

3 Operating profit

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediling): £000 £000

Franchise premium 94,137 128,368

Staff Costs (note 5) 203,580 133,088

Depreciation (note 10) 103,079 3,313

Amartisation of intangible assets (note 9) 14,382 8,340

Inventories recognised as expenses 12,811 19,351

Operating lease rentals

- Fixed track access 59,246 45 133

- Land and buildings - 3,591

- Rolling stock costs 120,281 63,495

- Plant and machinery 21 1,178

- Dther 6,458 4,704

Other Fixed and Vanable Access Charges 40,827 49,826

Auditors’ remuneration — audit fees DOHL 22 8

Auditors' remuneration — audit fees 233 89
Auditors' remuneration ~ non zudit services

- other compliance reporting 133 19

PPE Impairment expense (note 10) 14,865 -
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4 Directors’ remuneration

Year ended Yearended

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£506 FODD

Emaluments in respect of qualifying services to the Company 679 25

The emolurments of the highest paid Director were £195,000, refating to the year (2019:£150,000 for the forty week pericd
of trading, annual equivalent £195,000). There was no pension contributien (2019: £nil).

5 Staff costs

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 162,035 107,638
Social security costs 15,588 10,066
QOther pension costs 25,957 15,383

133,088

203,580

The average monthly number aof full-time equivalent employees (including Directors) during the year was as follows,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Managerial and administrative 689 504
Operationat 8,417 2,531
9,406 3,035
6§ Finance income and charges

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
E000 £000

Finance income
Bank interest 02 294
Pension interest 783 675
Total finance income 885 970

Finance charges
Interest on lease liabilities (IFRS 16) {10,296} -
Total finance charges {10,296) -
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7  Dividend

A dividend payment of £40m was received by DOHL from LNER during the financial year 2019-2020 for financiat year
2018-2019.

8 Tax on profit

a} Tax recognised in the income statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
Current taxation;
Current tax on (loss)/profits for the year 6,972 11,734
Adjustment in respect of prior years (1.454) -
4,518 11,734
Deferred tax:
Current year {3,308) 604
Effact of changes In tax rates 64 (64)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 196 -
Total deferred tax {3,441) 540
Total tax charge reported in the income statement 1,077 12 274
b} Tax relating to items charged or credited outside of the income statement
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
Equity items:
Deferred tax current year charge/(credit) * 8,082 5,465
Other comprehensive income items:
Deferred tax current year chargef{credit) 4,661 4
Tax reported outside of the Income statement 12,743 5,469

* Thig ¢charge brings the deferred tax provision onto the Statement of Financial Position as part of the transfer of the pension
scheme onto NTL's Statement of Financial Position,
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c) Factors affecting total tax charge for the current period

The tax assessed for the year is higher than the standard effective rate of corporation tax in the UK of 18% (2019: 19%).
The current tax charge is made up as follows:

Year ended

31 March Yesa; :‘Inderd‘

2020 arc
2019
£G00 FO00
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (7,833) 53,500

(Loss)/Profit multiplied by standard rale of corporation fax in the UK of 19%

(2019: 19%) (1,507) 10,165
Fixed asset differences 353 -
Expenses not deductible 674 355
Tax ratg changes 64 (64)
Trade transfer - 2.597
Exempt amounts - {779)
Deferred tax not recognised 3,143 -
Adjustment in respect of prior period — current tax (1,454) -
Adjustment in respect of prior periad — deferred tax _ {196} -
Total tax charge for the year reported in the income statement 1,077 12,274

9 Inianglble assets
The table below reflects the costs and accumulated of the Group's infangible assets in the statement of financial position.

Sof'::v:zsn;: Mobms:;lsotrs\ Total
£000 £000 £600

Cost
At beginning of year 27,776 9,474 37,250
Additions 8,771 71 8,842
Disposals {301} - (301)
Atend of year 36,246 9,645 45,794
Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year 5,748 2,431 8,179
Amortisation charged to the income statement 7,339 7.043 14,382
Disposals (236} - (236)
At end of year 12,851 8,474 22328
Net book value
At beginning of year 22,028 7.043 29,071
At end of year 23,395 71 23,466
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10 Tangible assets

The table befow reflects the costs and accumuiated of the Group’s tangible assets in the statement of financial posifion.

Leasehold Plant and Right of Total
fand and equipment Use
buildings

E000° £000 E0COD £000
Cost
At beginning of year 6,650 14,383 - 21,043
Initial adoption of IFRS 16 - - 217 488 217,488
Remeasurement IFRS 16 - - 361,005 361,008
Additions 2,473 154,915 - 157,388
Disposals - {3,118) - {3,118)
At end of year 9,123 186,150 678,493 753,806
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 447 2,641 - 3,088
Depreciation charged to the income
statement 663 13,758 88,658 103,079
Impairment - 11,034 831 11,865
Dispesals - (1.087) - {1,087)

1,110 26,346 B9,489 116,945
Net book valua
At beginning of year 6,203 11,752 - 17,958
At end of year 8,013 139,844 489,004 636,661

During the year the Group acquired a fleet of Class 365 units far £123m through its subsidiary Train Fleet (2618) Limited
and tangible assets of £15.4m through Northern Trains Limited as part of a transfer agreement with Arriva Rail North
Limited.

Under IFR516, Right of Use costs totalled £578.5m, of which £560.7m refated to rolling stock leases {note 21). The
Company had no Right of Use assets,

The Company's reporied additional plant and equipment costs of £3k in ihe year bringing total costs at 31 March 2020 of
£24k, a net hook vaiue of £13k,
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11 Investments

The Group held the foliowing unlisted investments al 31 March 2020:

No. of shares held

Countery of Class of 31 Mar Additions 31 Mar Proportion

Name of company registration share 2018 2020 held
Ordinary

ATOC Limited UK (4p) 1 1 2 10%
Ordinary

Rail Settlement Plan Limited UK {4p) 1 1 2 10%
Ordinary

Rail Staff Travel Limited UK (4p) i 1 2 10%
Ordinary

NRES Limited LK {£1) 1 1 2 10%

The pringipal activity of the above companies is to provide a range of services to all UK passenger rail operators, each of
which has an equal share in the companies. During the year the proportion held across the companies doubled due fo

Northern Railway Limited franchise. The invesiments are held at fair value.

The Group holds an investment of 25.1% of the ordinary share capital in West Yorkshire Ticketing Company Limited which
is incorporated in the UK and is owned by a number of operaters. The Company coordinates and manages the licketing
scheme by selling and promoting transport tickets on behalf of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority.

Details of investments in the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Country of
Name of company registration
Lendon North Eastern
Railway Limited UK
SE Trains Limited UK
Train Fleet (2019) UK
Northern Trains Limited* UK
DfT CLR4 Limited** UK
DfT OLRS Limited™ UK
DfT OLRS Limited* UK
OfT OLR7? Limited** UK.

Total Investments

No. of
shares held

1
§
16,100,100
1
1
1

Cfass of
share

Ordinary (£1)
Qrdinary (£1)
Ordinary (£1)
Qrdinary {£1})
Ordinary (£1)
Ordinary (£1)
Ordinary (£1)
Ordinary {£1)

Proportion
held

100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%

The subsidlary investments in the Statement of Financial Position are stated at fair value,
*DfT OLR3 Limited has been renamed Northern Trains Limited on 30 January 2020,
** Cembined investment for DIT OLR 4 to 7, less than £1.5k
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12 Inventories

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Raw materials and consurmables 8,718 2,142 - -

There is no material difference between the replacement value of inventories and their cost.

The cost of stack recognised as an expense and included in operating costs during the period amounted to £12.8m (2019
£19.4m).

13 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
Amounts falling due within one year: £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade receivables
Rail Settlement Plan 14,395 34779 - -
Other trade receivables 15,067 11,401 190 69
29,452 46,180 190 69
Amounts owed by group underakings 4,383 - 117,628 5,143
Group relief - - 7 .
Value Added Tax receivabie 21,661 8,643 16,623 -
Pregayments 52,148 28,873 18 1
Accrued income 25,448 12838 0 78
Other receivables 5,638 - 17 -
138,730 96,334 134,484 5,291

Amounts due from group undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand.

14 Trade and other payabiles

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year.
Trade payables 143,424 50,666 23 17
Amounts owed to group undertakings 172,074 - 196,662 41,079
Daferred season ticket income 10,170 5,001 - -
VAT payable 790 8§52 - 852
Other taxation and social security 10,874 3,080 23 20
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14 Trade and other payables continued

Other payables
Aceruals

Deferred income
Corporation tax payable
IFRS 16 Lease Liability

Accruals and deferred income
IFRS 16 Lease Liability

Amaounts owed to group undertakings within one year and are repayable on demand and interest free,

15 Provisions

Insurance claims (a)
Defsrred tax {note 14)

a) tnsurance ¢laims

At start of year
Charged to the income statement
Unused amounts reversed

Utilised in year

Pravision at end of year

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
£000 £000 £000 £0C0
11,242 6,422 7 37
114,646 65,086 459 3,741
6,181 30,404 - -
2,466 7.598 1 4
198,601 - - -
679,468 173,108 197,075 45,752
11,123 94 - -
294,106 - - -
305,229 94 - -
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
671 237 - -
15,311 6,009 - -
15,982 6,246
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
237 - - -
550 254 - -
(167) - - -
(9) (17) - -
671 237 - -

The £0.7m {2019: £0.2) provision relates to customer and employee claims against the Group's passenger rail service
subsidiaries for compensation for injuries oecurring whilst on the subsidiaries’ property. Payments are expected to be made
in respect of these claims as they are seftied, which is typicaily within 5 years of erigination, but the nature of the settliement
process makes the timing of these payments uncertain. Estimates of claim values are based on actuarial reviews and prier

claims history.
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16 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are cffset when there is a legally enforeeable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and where the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscat authority. The amounts are as follows:

Deaferred tax asset: Group Gompany
2020 201¢ 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 E00O

Fixed assets (25) - (1) -

Short-term provision (4) - - -

Deferred tax asset {29) - (N -

Deferred tax liabilities: Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £0046 £000

Fixed assels - 1,237 - -

Defined benefit pension 15,340 4772 - -

Deferred tax Liabilities 15,340 6,009 - -

Net Deferred tax (Asset)f Liability 15,311 6,009 1) -

The movement in deferred tax during the year was:

Group Company

2020 20%9 2020 2019

EDOT £000 £000 £000
At beginning of year 6,009 - - -
Charge to income statement {3,245} 540 () -
Prigr charge to income statement {186)
Charge to equity (note 8b) * §,082 5,465 - -
Charge to OCI (hote 8b) * 4,661 4 - -
Deferred tax provision 15,311 6,000 M -

* The charge to equily and OC! brings the deferred tax provision onto the Statement of Financial Position as part of the
transfer of LNER and NTL's pension scheme.
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17 Called up share capital

Group and Group and
Company Company
2020 2018
£ £
Issued share capital unpaid
Ordinary shares of £1 each A 4

18 Reserves

A reconciliation of the movements if reserves s shown in the Consclidated Statement ¢f Changes in Equity on page 34
and (the Company on page 35). The balance held in the retained earnings reserve includes the accumulated retained
profits of the Group.

The capital contribution include both LNER's and NTL's defined benefit pension asset at the start of ownerskip and
associated defarred tax. It also includes £16.1m of Grant in aid from the DT to DOHL used acquire £16.1m of TF19 share
capital (note: 11). This was primarily relating to the reduction of TF19's lean, used to purchase the 40 Class 365 units on
13 August 2019.

18 Capital commitments

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£000 £000 £060 £000

Contracted 22,997 6,649 - -
Authorised but not contracted 22,410 19,660 - -

Capital commitements relate to capital projects that the Group is committed to or has approved but not yet contracted as at
31 March 2020, the cost to be incurred over the remaining capital project timeline and include cngoing transformation
programmes, specifically station improvements, depot improvements, gauging, ticket vending machines and facility
upgrade projects,

20 Transfer Agreements
Where there has been a purchase and transfer of ownership by means of a business transfer agreements, the assets and
liabilities are measured and recognised in the entities at fair value by the financial year end date.

a) Transfer of Arriva Rail North Limited {ARN) assets and liabillties to NTL

On 1 March 2020, Arriva Rall North Limied ceased operalions and Northern Trains Limited began operating under 2
Services Agreement with the Department for Transport. The franchise assets and liabililies were transferred. The net
cansideration received by NTL was £11.1m. The book vaiues of the assets and liabilities were taken from the management
accounts of Arriva Rail North Limited at the date of fransfer, with certain assets and liabilities that are exciuded from the
franchise transfer agreement not taken into account. The fair values of these assets are assessed at the end of the financial
year end,
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Transfer of Arriva Ral! North Limited (ARN) assets and liabilities to NTL

Transfer

value

£000
Tangible Fixed assets 15,384
Intangible Fixed assets 342
Inventories 5,587
Prepayments 2,076
Accrued income 2,385
Other receivables 1,261
Cash in hand 294
Other payables (1,091}
Accruals {23,960}
Deferred income (5,263)
Deferred season income (8,147}
Net liabilities (11,132)
Consideration included in Other receivables at 31 March 2020 11,132
Total cash settlement during the year -

The pensicn scheme asset calculated at the transfer date was not part of the transfer scheme with Northern Trains Limited
{page 34).
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21 Lease lHabllities

Lease llabilitles

Initial adoption of IFRS 16 1 April 2019
New Leases

Remeasurement

Interest

Repayment of lease liabilities

Balance at 31 March 2020

Current lease liabilities
Non-current tlease liabilities

Total lease liabilities

Right of use assets

Initial adoption of IFRS 16 1 April 2019
Additions

Remeasurement

Impairment

Depreciation for the year

Balance at 31 March 2020

Lease amounts recognised in operating

costs:

Leasas of low value assets
Short term leases

Variablg lease components

Track and Station access costs

Income from subleasing right of use assets

Total

Rolling Land & Plant &
Stock Buildings Machinery Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
59,723 8,185 546 69,464
148,722 - - 148,722
351,821 7,968 719 360,508
9,917 360 18 10,296
(93,258} (2817) (187) (96,272)
476,925 14,696 1,087 492,708
191,094 7,010 498 198,602
285,631 7,686 589 294,106
476,925 14,696 1,087 492,708
59,723 8,448 545 88,766
148,722 - - 148,722
352,270 8,016 719 361,005
(831) - . (831)
(84,581) (3,823) {254) (88,658)
475,303 12,691 1,010 489 004
. - 167 167
20,623 - 54 20,677
59,688 - - 99,668
- 89,317 - 59,317
- @1) - (71)
120,291 59,248 221 178,758

Right of use assets comprise rolling stock, offices and other property leases plus depot equipment.

Included in roiting stock right of use assets are the new LNER's Azurna fieet in addition tc part of the legacy fleet retained
at year end for both LNER and NTL. The Azuma lease continues until 2046 while NTL includes rolling stock leases which
continue until 2025, The ferm for the Company's service period has been used to measure the liabilities, being the period
of use of the right of use assets. Maintanance and variable components of the lease are shown in operating costs

Part of the legacy fleet was handed back during the year. The lease costs for iegacy fieet handad back and the non-capital

element of rolling stock leases are shown in operating costs under short term leases.
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22 Ratirement benefit obligations

Information about the Scheme and the Group’s accounting policies
The Gompany's subsidiary, LNER and NTL operates a final salary pension scheme and is part of the Raitways Pension
Scheme, but its assets and liabilities are identified separately from the remainder of the Scheme.

The Section is a shared cost arrangement whereby the subsidiaries are only responsible for a share of the cost. The figures
reported below therefore represent only the company's share of the cost, except that the tables reconeiling the Section's
Defined Benefit Qbligations {DBO) and assets from the start to the end af the year are presented before the deduction of
the members' share of the defined benefit cost, or the surplus or deficit. This is for simplicity of presentation and for
consistency with the DBO and assets quoted in the table showing the pension scheme liability or asset at the end of the

year.
The Section is open 10 new mambers.

Employer contributions for the period ended 31 March 2020 are;

Section Pay LNER NTL
Gategory 60 Members 11.58% 13 3%
Category 62 Members 10.08% 12.2%
Category 64 Members 9 54% n/a

The discounted mean term of the Section’s DBO was 23 years and 24 years for LNER and NTL respectively at the end of
the reporting period.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks relating to the Section, including assumptions not being bome out in practice.
It should be noted that due to the nature of the franchise adjustment, the Group is effectively shielded from these risks
relating to the Section in the short-term. Soeme ofthe most significant risks are as follows, aithough the listis not exhaustive.

s Asset volatility: There is the risk that a fall in asset values is not matched by a corresponding reduction in
the value placed on the Section's DBEQ. The Section holds a proportion of growth assets, which are expected
to outperform corporate and government bond yields in the long-term, but gives exposure to volatility and
risk in the short-term, This should be noted in the context of the impact of Covid at 31 March 2020

« Changein bond yields. A decrease in ¢orporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the Section's DBO,
although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the Section's corporate bend holdings.

« inflation risk: The majority of the Section's DBO is linked to inflation, where higher inflation will lead to a higher
value being placed an the DBO. Same of the Section's assets are either unaffected by inflation or loosely
corretated with inflation (e.g. growth assets), meaning that an increase in inflation witl generally increase the
deficit.

«  Life expectancy: An increase in iife expectancy wilf lead to an increased vaiue being placed on the Section DBO.
Future mortality rates cannot be pradicted with certainty.

»  Contribution rate: The Scherme Rules give the Scheme Actuary the pawer to set the contribution rates for LNER
and NTL if no agreement can be reached between the Trustee and the company

Registered Cffice: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H SAE
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22 Retirement benefit obligations {cantinued)

Membarship data:

LNER NTL LNER NTL
2020 2020 2019 2019
Active members 2,996 8,188 2,842 -
Deferred members 3,922 3,140 3,855 -
Pansioner members {inciuding dependants) 1,999 3,308 1,955 -
Asset Data:
LNER NTL Total
At March 2020 £000 £000 £000
Growth assets 612,088 1,001,232 1,613,320
Government bonds 16,822 - 16,822
Nan-Government bonds 39,251 - 39,261
Other assets 2,373 16,362 18,735
Total asset value 570,534 1,017,594 1,588,128
LNER NTL Total
At March 2019 £000 £000* £000
Growth assets 542,155 - 542,165
Govearnment bonds 12,477 - 12,477
Non-Government bonds 29,113 - 29,113
Other assets 1,181 - 1,181
Total asset value 584,926 - 564,926

*NTL started trading on 01 March 2020, Total asset value at 01 March 2020 was £1,075,970.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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22 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

Summary of assumptions:

Discount rate

Future price inflation (RPI measure)
Future price infiation {CPI measure)
Pension increases (CPI measure)

Pensionable Salary increases

LNER

31 March 2020
% pa
2,20
2.60
1.80
1.80

2.60

NTL

31 March
2020

% pa
220
2.50
1.80
1.80

2.50

LNER

31 March
2019

% pa
2.35
3.20
2.20
2.20
3.20

NTL

01 March
2020

% pa
1.60
2.80
2.10
210

2.80

The assumed average expectation of life in years at age 65 is as fallows (before postcode based adjustments for males):

Male currently aged 65
Male eurrently aged 45
Female currently aged 65

Female currently aged 45

Defined benefit asset at end of year:

At 31 March 2020

Defined benefit obligation at end of year
Active members

Defarred members

Pensioner members {incl. dependanis)
Total defined benefit obligation

Fair vaiue of assets at end of year

Adjustment for the members' share of deficit

Deficit expected to be recovered after end of current service

period {Franchise adjustment)

LNER NTL LNER NTL
31 March 31 March 31 March g1 March
2020 2020 2019 2029
20.8 20.9 209 20.9
22.2 223 228 22.3
223 22.8 22.4 22.8
24.0 24.4 24.3 24.4

LNER NTL Total

£000 £000 £000

(443,532) (1,057,910} {1,601.442)

{196,591) {173,435} [370,026)

(219,777) {269.604) {489,381)

(859,900} {1,500,949) (2,360,849)

570,534 1,017,694 1,588,128

115,746 183,342 309,088

214,924 329,448 544,370

41,304 39,433 86,737

Net defined benefit asset at end of the year 31 March 2020

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H BAE
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22 Ratirement benefit obligations (continued)

At 31 March 2018

Defined benefit obligation at end of year
Active members

Deferred members

Pensioner members {incl, dependants)
Total defined benefit obligation

Fair value of assets af end of year

Adjustment for the members’ share of deficit

Deficit expected to be recovered after end of current service
period

Net defined beneflt asset at end of the year 31 March 2618

*NTL started trading on 01 March 2020, their Net defined benefit asset at 01 March 2020 was £39,153.

Recgnciliation of net defined benefit asset:

AtMarch 2020

Opening net defined benefit asset
Transferred net defined benefit asset
Employer's share of P&L expense
Employers contributions

Total gain recognised in OC!

Closing net defined benefit asset

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, Lendon, SW1H 9AE
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LNER NTL Total
£000 £000 £000
(455,305) - {465,308)
(211,526) - {211,526)
(233,627) - (233,627
(910,458) - {910,458)
584,026 . 584,026
130,213 . 130,213
223,382 - 223,392
28,073 - 28,073
LNER NTL Total
£000 £000 £000
28,073 - 28,073
. 39,153 39,153
{16,809} (4,028) (20,637}
8,050 1,670 9,620
21,790 2,738 24,528
41,304 39,433 80,737
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22 Retirement benefit obligations (continued}

Profit & Loss (P&L) at 31 March 2020:

Employer's share of service costs

Employer's share of administration cost

Past service cost agjustment

Total employer's share of service cost

Empleyer's share of net interest on net defined benefit asset
Interest on current service period adjustment

Employer's share of P&L expense

Other comprehensive income {OCI} at March 2020;

Gain/(Loss) due to liabiiity experience

Gain/(Loss) due to liability assumption changes
Return an plan assets greater/(less) than discount rate
Gain/{L.oss) on change in franchise adjustment

Total gain recognised in the OCI

Reeoncllfation of defined henefit obligation (DBO) at 31 March 2020:

Qpening defined benefit obligation

Traznsferred defined benefit obligation

Service cost

Interest cost on DBO

Gain/(Loss) on DBO — experience

Gain/{Loss) on DBO — dernographic assumptions
Gainf{Loss) on DBO = financial agsumptions
Benefit payments

Settlement

Atend of year

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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LNER NTL Total
£000 £000 £000
{20,026) {4,050) (24,076)
(1,830) {31) (1,861}
4,517 . 4,517
(17,339) {4,081) (21,420)
(4,520) (614) (5,134)
6,250 667 6,917
{16,608) (4,028} {20,637}
LNER NTL Tatal
£000 £000 £000
(630} 209,999 209,369
39,404 - 39,404
{3,286} (35,818) (39,084}
(13,718) (171,443) {185,161)
21,780 2,738 24,528
LNER NTL Total
£000 £000 £000
(910,458) - {910,458)
- (1,844,419} (1,844,419}
(33,217) (6,734) {39,9861)
(21,187) {2,467) (23,644)
(389) - (989)
4,722 . 4,722
§0,951 349,999 410,950
17,727 2,662 20,389
22,551 - 22,551
{859,900) (1,500,949) (2,360,849)
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22 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

‘Reconciliation of value of assets at March 2020;

LNER NTL Total

£000 £000 £000

Opening value of section assets 584,926 - 584,826

Transfarred value of section asseis - 1,075,970 1,075,870

Interest income on assels 43,654 1,436 15,089

Return on plan assets greater than discount rate (5,443) (59,697) {65,140)

Employer's contributions 8,650 1,570 9,620

Employee contributions 5,146 4,030 6,178

Actual benefit payments (17,727) {2,662) (20,389)

Administration costs (3,0560) (52) £3,102)

Settlement {15,022} - (15,022)

Closing value of section assets 570,534 1,017,594 1,588,128
DBO sensitlivity to significant actuarial assumptions:

Sensitivity Approximate change in DBO

LNER NTL Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Discount rate -0,25% p.a. +48,400 +85,615 +135,015

+0.25% p.a. -45 600 -79,246 -124 846

Price inflation {CPI measure)* -0.25% p.a, -42.800 -75,639 -118,438

+0.25% p.a. +47 700 +81,242 +128,942

Salary increases -0.25% p.a. -14,000 -24,275 -38,275

+0.25% p.a. +14 500 +25,055 +39,555

Life expectancy -1 year +26,700 -45,028 -18,328

+1 year -28,700 +45 028 +18,328

*Including consistent increases to RP, salaty growth and RPICP! related pension incredse

appticable.

assumptions, where

The sensitivity figures are as at 31 March 2020. [r addition, the sensitivity figures are based on indicative caiculations and
therefore may not be sufficiently accurate for use in any actuarial calculations whose results are intenced for disclosure in

the Group's accounts.
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23 Related party disclosures
OfT OLR Holdings Limited is a company wholfy owned by the Secretary of State for Transport, At the 31 March 2020, the

Company had an outstanding debtor balance cwed to the Secretary of State for Transport of £172.1m (2019: £0.1m).
During the year DOHL was provided £16.1m of Grant in aid from the DfT to acquire a further 16,100,000 shares in TF19
This was primarily relating to the reduction of TF19's loan, used to purchase the 40 Class 385 units on 15 August 2019,

The Company's subsidiaries, London North Eastern Railway Limited and Northern Trains Limited, operates rail franchise
under licence under a Services Agreement with the Department for Transpert. Under the Services Agreement Landon
North Eastern Railway s required to pay a financial premium to the Department for Transport, which for the year to 314
March 20320, amounted to £84.1m (2019; £128.4m). For Northern Trains Limited, under the Service Agreement the
company receives a 'Fixed service payment’ from the DfT which for the year to 31 March 2020 amounted to £54.4m (2019:

£nil)

Capital project funding of £1m was received by LNER during the year from the Department for Transport (2019: £1.6m)
and an additional £0.5m were incurred during the year relating 1o the intreduction of the Azuma flaet. The ather DOHL
companies had £nil funding (2018: Enil}.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are refated parties, have been eliminated on consalidation
ang are not disclosed in this note.

24 Ultimate parent undertakings
The immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling pany is the Secrelary of Slate for Transport

The financial statements of the Secretary of State for Transport can be obtained from Great Minster House, 33 Horseferry
Road, Londan, SW1 PADR.

Registered Office: Albany House 8th Floor, 94-98 Petty France, London, SW1H 9AE
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Appendix to the Annual Report and Financial Statements
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Company Registration Number 07141122

The subsidiary company : SE Trains Limited, company number 03266762 is taking advantage

of exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Robin Gisby
CEO and Accounting Officer

30 July 2020
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